

Emdat Mobile for iOS devices

EMDAT SUPPORT 608 270-6400x1 www.emdat.com/ticket/

Table of Contents

Ta	ble of	Contents	2
Intro	oducti	on	3
Req	uireme	ents	3
IMP	ORTAI	NT: RECEIVING CALLS WHILE DICTATING	3
1.	Ins	talling Emdat Mobile on All Apple Devices	4
2.		rting Emdat Mobile	
2. 3.		ing Emdat Mobile on iPhones and iPods	
5.		-	
	3.1	The Patient Screen	
	3.2	The Dictation Screen	
	3.3	The Info Tab	
	3.4	The Templates Tab	
	3.5	The History Tab	
	3.6	Recording A Dictation	
	3.7	Creating a New Appointment	
	3.8	Creating Multiple Dictations on One Appointment	
	3.9	The Transcriptions Screen	
		The Folder View	
		Searching for Dictations	
		Transcription Viewer	
		The Edit Screen	
		The Settings Screen	
		The Account Screen	
4.	Em	dat Mobile on the iPad	
	4.1	Logging into Emdat Mobile on iPad	17
	4.2	Using Emdat Mobile on the iPad	17
	4.3	Appointments on the iPad	18
	4.4	Recording Dictation on the iPad	
	4.5	Viewing Pending and Completed Transcriptions on the iPad	20
	4.6	The Search Function on the iPad	21
	4.7	Editing Transcribed Dictations	22
	4.8	The Settings Screen	22
	4.9	Account Screen for iPad	23
5.	Tro	publeshooting and FAQ	24
6.	Inp	atient	25
7.	Re	moving Emdat Mobile	. 27
8.		ح oport	
	2.01	-r	

Introduction

Emdat Mobile is available on iPhone, iPad, or iPod Touch. It is used to review appointments, create dictations and submit them for transcription, as well as edit and complete transcriptions.

The Emdat Mobile application is being constantly updated and improved. Some of the screen shots in this manual may not match the current version of the application.

Requirements

- Apple iPhone 3gs or later, iPad 2 or later, or iPod Touch 3rd generation or later.
- The iPod Touch requires a microphone if recording dictations.
- iOS 5.0 or greater is required and Emdat recommends the latest iOS version (currently 8) considering recent security vulnerabilities in unpatched version of iOS.
- Internet Access through a wireless Local Area Network (LAN) connection or through a phone service provider. It is strongly recommended to use a Wi-Fi LAN connection when uploading dictations.
- Emdat Mobile is not supported on iPhone models older than the iPhone 3GS.

IMPORTANT: RECEIVING CALLS WHILE DICTATING

The iPhone application cannot block incoming phone calls. Apple Inc. makes it impossible for Emdat Mobile, or any other application, to block phone calls. If you have concerns about receiving calls while making a dictation, switch your phone to "Do Not Disturb" or "Airplane Mode" while dictating. To continue using the application while in Airplane Mode, please enable the Wi-Fi.

If a phone call is received while dictating, Emdat Mobile will pause the recording. Dictation that was made prior to the incoming call will not be lost; to resume dictating after finishing the call, tap the record button again and continue to dictate.

1. Installing Emdat Mobile on All Apple Devices

To obtain Emdat Mobile go to the Apple App Store, search for "Emdat Mobile," and download the Emdat Mobile application. The Emdat Mobile app can also be downloaded from the iTunes Store.

1. Start the App Store application.



2. Search for "Emdat Mobile."



3. Tap the "Free" button and the install option will display.



4. The application will now install itself.



2. Starting Emdat Mobile

To get started, launch the Emdat Mobile application from the home screen after the installation has completed.

Once Emdat Mobile has started the login screen will appear. Enter your login credentials, which are the same as those used for InQuiry. Press the login button at the top right or the very bottom.



- **Login** Enter your login name here.
- **Password** Enter your password here.
- **Client** The code that identifies the facility you work for.
- **Save Login** The Emdat Mobile app will remember a user's login when this option is switched to "ON". The next time the application is opened, it will remember the login.
- **Save Password** The application will remember a user's password when this option is switched to "ON", but it can only be used if the administrator of your facility's account allows it. If this is set to "ON", other people can gain unauthorized access to your account if they have your iPhone.



3. Using Emdat Mobile on iPhones and iPods

Once logged in, the Emdat Mobile application starts at the Account screen.

The iPhone and iPod application screens have four buttons at the bottom. These are for navigating to the four main screens of the iPhone app.



This button is highlighted in blue because the application is on the Patient Appointments screen. The other icons will highlight in blue when the application is on those screens.



This button takes the application to the Transcriptions screen, where transcriptions can be viewed, approved, and edited.



This button opens the Settings screen, where default settings for appointments, document types, locations, and other application features can be set. This is where the available document types and locations can be reduced to a smaller list of favorites.



This button will access the Account Screen to facilitate switching between multiple Emdat Mobile logins.

3.1 The Patient Screen

The Patient screen is used to review appointments and create new appointments and dictations. The calendar will open to the last viewed date in the previous session. If a dictation is over three days old, and has not been uploaded, Emdat Mobile will give a pop-up reminder.

To choose a specific date tap the button in the upper left corner; the date selector will appear. The current day can be chosen from the date selector by tapping on the 'Today' button at the upper right of the screen.

Tap on the + button at the upper right hand corner of the screen to create a new appointment. This will be covered in detail in the next section: The Dictation Screen.

Tap on the 📄 button at the lower right hand corner of the screen to filter which appointments will be visible. Filters can be used to hide appointments that:

- Appointments dictated on other devices and already uploaded.
- Dictations that are currently uploading.
- Appointments that have dictation done and sent for transcription.

Appointments can also be filtered based on Schedule Resources. One or more Resource IDs can be assigned to a provider, and they can be filtered out as necessary.

Tap and hold down your finger while swiping down anywhere in the appointment listing to refresh the workflow folder listing. Note that this works when the view is already scrolled to the top.

Appointments that have a recorded dictation will show one of these icons:

• This icon represents an appointment that does have a recorded dictation, but has not been sent.

• This icon represents an appointment that has a recorded dictation and has been successfully sent to the transcription company.

This icon represents an appointment that has been recorded and uploaded from another device.

iPod 3	(r.	2:36 PM		* 💼
	•	Oct 2	•	+
Chi	cago Hope			
12:00	Carl Morgar 986532	ı		_
12:00	Darryl Jenki 55321	ns		_
12:00	Frank Stein 65432			_
12:00	Janie Smith 5522			
12:00	Kevin Saliga 1223456	l		_
12:00	Laura King 1234567			
12:00	Laurie Kaise	er		
12:00	Louise Roge	ers		
12:00	Paula Little			
		D 🍋		
Patie	Transcript	ions Se		U



3.2 The Dictation Screen

Select an appointment from the list in the Patient screen to view its details and record a dictation. New appointments are created by tapping on the + button at the upper right side of the screen. The recording controls appear at the bottom of the screen.

3.3 The Info Tab

The Info Tab contains all the information about that specific appointment, such as the Document Type and Location. If a document type or location is not selected those fields will be highlighted in red. Additional appointment details can be found here.

Only the Document Type and Location can be edited for Dictations created from the appointment list. In addition for ad hoc dictations started with the + button, Patient ID and Appointment Date and Time can also be edited.

Dictate any other appointment information that needs to be changed. The transcriptionist will make those changes during transcription.

The three screen shots below are from the Info tab. By default, the Info tab will appear when an appointment is opened. The default screen can be changed to Templates or History on the Settings screen.

By default, when new dictations are created, Emdat Mobile does not select a Document Type or Location for that dictation. When uploading a dictation with no Document Type or Location selected, Emdat Mobile will prompt the user to select one from a list of available Document Types and Locations. However, to stop Emdat Mobile from prompting for a Document Type and Location when uploading, select a default Document Type and Location from the Settings Screen.

The location for an appointment can be set by the facility scheduling software or EMR and it will appear by default. This location can still be changed by tapping on the location bar and selecting the new location.

Patient ID 65432

	2:38 PM	* 💼	iPod 🗢	2:38 PM
atients I	Frank Stein		Patients	Frank Stein
	2117201		PATIENT DEMO	GRAPHICS
ICTATION INFO	RMATION		Patient Name	
		5	Frank Stein	
			Birthdate	Age
		5	Jan 1, 2000	14
		1.00		
ceipt Code			ENCOUNTER	
			Appointment Da	te
			October 2, 2	014 at 12:00
			Resource	
	GRAPHICS		Encounter Desc	ription
ATIENT DEMOG	GRAPHICS	Patient ID	Encounter Desc	ription
tient Name ank Stein		65432	Encounter Desc	ription
tient Name ank Stein thdate	Age	65432 Gender		ription
		65432	Order Number	ription
tient Name ank Stein thdate	Age	65432 Gender	Order Number 6885456962	ription
ient Name ank Stein hdate n 1, 2000	Age 14	65432 Gender M	Order Number 6885456962	ription
tient Name ank Stein thdate n 1, 2000	Age 14	65432 Gender M	Order Number 6885456962	ription

iPod ᅙ	2:38 PM		* 💻
Patients	Frank Stein		Û
ENCOUNTER	3		
Appointment			
	2014 at 12:00	AM	
Resource			
Encounter De	escription		
Order Numbe	er		
688545696	52		
Access No			
Location			
Dis Date			
Hosp #			
STAT		»)	Append
00:00		00:00	
[T]	0	0	9
Templates	Info	His	land

3.4 The Templates Tab

The templates tab shows the Document Template and Dictation Templates which can be used as a reference while dictating. The Document Type can be selected by tapping on the ⁽¹⁾ icon on the right side of the Document Template field. The template is displayed by tapping anywhere else in the field.



3.5 The History Tab

When Emdat Mobile recognizes the Patient ID for the current appointment, the history button will indicate the number of prior transcriptions for that patient that are available for review. Tap to show the list of prior transcriptions, which include document type, dictating clinician, and date for each transcription. Select an item to review its transcription and demographic details.

iPod 🗢	2:39 PM			* 💼
Patients	Frank Ste	in		Û
History & Ph Demonstration	ysical Report	Jan '	17, 2013	>
Letter Demonstration	User	Jan	4, 2013	>
History & Ph Demonstration	ysical Report	Dec	14, 2012	>
Letter Greg Smith, M	.D.	Jun 2	23, 2012	>
Echocardio Jeff Olver	gram	Jun	15, 2012	Σ
Letter Chris Attkins, I	M.D	Aug 2	25, 2008	>
History & Ph Chris Attkins, I	ysical Report M.D	Aug	14, 2008	>
Letter		Aug	14, 2008	S.
STAT				ppend
00:00		- 0	0:00	
[T]	i		C	9
Templates	Info		Histo	ry

\odot	Details			
0	Details			
\odot	Transcri	ption		
CHIEF	COMPLA	AINT: [As	dictated.]
HISTOF	RY OF PF	RESENT II	LLNESS	:
[AEhat s	dictated.]			
PAST M	EDICAL	HISTORY	Y: [As	
dictatedo	ookj.]Noi	ne.	5	
	URGICA	L HISTOF	Y: [As	
		L HISTOF	X: [As	
PAST SU	None.			No
PAST SU	None.	L HISTOF		No
PAST SU dictated.] DRUG A	None.			
PAST SU dictated.] DRUG A	None.			Appen
PAST SU dictated.] DRUG A	None.		lictated.	Appen

< Stein
74185227
65432
Frank Stein
Letter
emonstration User
January 1, 2000
Μ
Chicago Hope
January 4, 2013
Append
00:00
History

3.6 Recording A Dictation

iPhone and iPod

The recording mode can be modified by tapping on the button to the right side of the screen. The button at the far right indicates the current recording mode. Tap to switch between Append, Overwrite, and Insert modes.



Underneath the recording buttons, the timer on the left side shows what part of the dictation is currently playing, or being recorded into, and the timer on the right shows the total length of the dictation. The slider can be dragged to play different parts of the dictation.

The box to the right of the recording timer is an equalizer that should flash green during dictation.

Note: Some older iPads and iPods must have a microphone attached to enable recording.



When the dictation is complete, tap the Upload button in the top right corner of the screen. The Emdat Mobile application will prompt to select a Document type and/or Location if one has not yet been chosen. Tapping the Upload button will send the dictation for transcription. Once a dictation is uploaded, no more changes can be made to it; it cannot be marked STAT for example.

Tapping this will provide the option to delete the recorded dictation from the device. If the appointment was created new on the phone the appointment will be removed. If the appointment was downloaded from the Emdat servers, the appointment will not be removed from the Patient Appointments screen.

The Patients button on the top left corner can be tapped while recording or when recording is paused. Tapping on the Patients button will pause the dictation and return Emdat Mobile to the Patient Appointments screen.





3.7 Creating a New Appointment

Use the \pm button at the top right corner of the Patient Appointments screen to create a new appointment, which can then be dictated. The appointment date will be populated with the date currently shown at the top of the Patient Appointment screen, but it can be changed.

There will be an arrow next to the Patient ID field; tap on this button to enter the patient ID for this appointment. The patient's name and demographic data will be associated with the appointment when the dictation is uploaded to the transcription company.

Emdat Mobile 2.5.3 for iOS devices, last updated 12/13/18

3.8 Creating Multiple Dictations on One Appointment

If it is necessary to create an additional Transcription for an Appointment return to the Patient Screen and locate the appointment.



Press the edit button and select the option for "New Dictation." Select Document Type, Location, and record normally.

Press the upload button and Emdat Mobile will prompt for Append information.

- Append: Attach this transcription to the end of the prior transcription.
- Prepend: Attach the prior transcription to the end of the new transcription.
- Upload as New Dictation: Upload this dictation as a standalone Transcription. This Transcription will not be attached to any prior Transcriptions.

3.9 The Transcriptions Screen

The workflow screen gives an overview of how many transcriptions appear in each folder of the workflow. The workflow folders will display the label name assigned by your medical facility.

Tapping on any of the folders will show a list of the transcriptions that are in that stage of the workflow. The first folder, here called "To Be Typed", contains dictations that are at the transcription company, but have not yet been transcribed.





3.10 The Folder View

When a workflow folder is opened, Emdat Mobile will list all transcriptions that would be seen in that folder in InQuiry. The patient name, patient ID, appointment Date and Time, and dictating clinician's name are shown for each transcription in that folder.

The Edit button at the lower right corner of the screen is used to complete all or selected transcriptions, and move them to the next folder in the work flow. Select or de-select transcriptions by tapping on them; a checkmark will appear next to the selected transcriptions. Then tap on the complete button to complete them, or the cancel button to cancel without completing the selected transcriptions.

The sort order of the folder view can be by Date Dictated, Patient Name, or Appointment Date. This sort order is changed by tapping on the Dictated, Patient, and Appt buttons at the bottom of the screen.

Tap and hold down your finger while swiping down anywhere in the transcription listing to refresh the workflow folder listing. Note that this works when the view is already scrolled to the top.

3.11 Searching for Transcriptions

www

At the upper right corner of the Transcriptions Screens is the ^Q Search Button. This button appears in both the main Transcriptions screen, and the screens for each individual folder. When the Search Button is used from the main Transcriptions screen it will search in all folders of the workflow.

When the Search Button is used from within a folder in the workflow it will only search transcriptions in that folder.

The icons next to the Search Results will indicate which workflow folder that dictation is in. The icons are:



Welcome to Emdat	1/1/02, 12:00	AI
	Demonstration U	S
Welcome to Emdat	1/1/02, 12:00	AI
15151	Demonstration U	s
Roger Marcus	8/26/11, 12:00	AI
21234	Demonstration U	S
Peter Robbins	2/16/12, 12:00	AI
55647	Demonstration U	S
Alex Peterson	2/16/12, 12:00	AI
0765432	Demonstration U	S
Jane Doe	2/16/12, 12:00	AI
489515	Demonstration U	S
Shelia Jackson	2/16/12, 12:00	AI
34242	Demonstration U	S
Mako Hunter	2/17/12, 12:00	AI
66935	Demonstration U	s

2.42 DM

iPod 🙃

- Dictation This is a dictation that is still being transcribed by a transcriptionist.
- Review This is a transcription that is in the Review folder of the workflow.
- Preliminary This is a transcription that is in the Preliminary folder of the workflow and can be electronically signed.
- Final This transcription is in one of the Final/Print folders at the end of the workflow.
- Referral This transcription is in the Referral folder; a folder for Emdat clients at other facilities to view dictations as associates.
- Archive This transcription has been moved through the entire workflow and is now archived.

3.12 Transcription Viewer

A transcription is viewed by tapping on one of the entries in any workflow folder other than the Dictation Status folder; that folder contains dictations that have not yet been transcribed. The Patient Name will be displayed at the top between the Back arrow button at the left, and the Edit/Complete button to the right.

Create a New Dictation, Complete, or Edit a transcription by tapping the 🖞 button on the upper right. After completing a transcription the application loads the next transcription immediately. The Edit screen is covered in the next section of this manual.

The template editor box appears when a dictation is completed if a signature requires an attestation. Emdat Mobile will prompt you to enter your attestation with you electronic signature. Choose from available attestation templates or complete without a template.

Recorded dictations are stored on the phone for two weeks after the dictated date, but they cannot be listened to from the transcription viewer. To listen to a recorded dictation that is still saved on the iPhone or iPod, go to its entry on the Schedule screen.

iPod � 2:44 PM 🖇 🗰 iPod ♥ 2:44 PM 🖇 🗰	iPod 🗢
Back Peter Robbins Image: Comparison of the sector of the	Back
PREOPERATIVE DIAGNOSIS: Right foot INFO	COMMEN
POSTOPERATIVE DIAGNOSIS: Right foot To Be Signed Folder	A copy of MT at 01 dictation and this
63473249 PROCEDURE: Right below-knee Transcription ID	sound fil inserted
amputation. 55647 Patient ID SURGEON: John Doe, M.D. Deter Determined	TAGS
ANESTHESIA: Spinal. Peter Robbins Patient Name	None
February 16, 2012 at 12:00 AM FLUIDS: 300 cc Ringer's lactate. Appointment Date	
ESTIMATED BLOOD LOSS: 250 cc. Date Dictated	
INDICATIONS FOR SURGERY: This is a Demonstration User 68-year-old male with a history of insulin- Author	
dependent diabetes mellitus, coronary artery February 1, 2012 disease, chronic renal failure and heart failure Birthdate	
who was initially admitted for congestive heart (Mana)	i
Info Transcription Comments Info Transcription Comments	Info

3.13 The Edit Screen

The Edit option is intended for small or minor edits. If more extensive editing and formatting is needed, consider using InQuiry on a desktop computer.

Access the Edit Screen by tapping the ⁽¹⁾ button at the top right corner of the transcription viewer. After tapping the ⁽¹⁾ button, Emdat Mobile will ask if the transcription is to be completed, edited, or to create a New Dictation. Tap on Edit to edit the transcription.

To edit a transcription's demographic details, tap on the field to be changed. Depending on the type of field selected, the keyboard, date selector, or a list of options will appear. In text fields a ⁽²⁾ button will appear. Tapping on this button will delete all of the text from that field.

In date and text fields, tap the done button to keep the changes, and return to the Transcription Viewer. Tap the Cancel button to cancel the changes made, and return to the Edit screen. In selection list fields (Location, Document Type, or Author) tap on a selection or the back button on the upper left hand corner of the screen to return to the Edit screen.

ΓÎ

Changes are not saved until the Complete button is tapped in the Edit screen.

- New Dictation: Save Changes and begin dictation for a new Transcription.
- Undo Changes: Undo any changes and return to the Transcription Viewer.
- Save: Save Changes and return to the transcription viewer.
- Complete: Save Changes and complete the Transcription from the workflow folder.
- Cancel: Return to the Editing screen.

Pod ᅙ	2:45 PM	* 💻
Cancel	Roger Marcus	сîп

approximately one month. The patient also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies fever, chills, and sweats. He denies cough and diarrhea. He has mild anorexia. Past Medical History: Essentially unremarkable except for chest wall cysts which apparently have been biopsied by a dermatologist in the past, and he was given a benign diagnosis. He had a recent PPD which was negative in August 1994.

A S D F G H J K L ◆ Z X C V B N M ≪ 123 © Q space return	<	>		. A	1.11		L	. C	Done
A S D F G H J K L ▲ Z X C V B N M △ 123 245 PM ************************************		I.			The			ľ'n	n
▲ Z X C V B N M <	Q	WE	EF	3	<u>ר</u>	ſι	J		P
123	А	S	D	F	G	Η	J	κ	L
Pod ₹ 2/45 PM Cancel Roger Marcus INFO INFO To Be Signed Folder Savazza Savazza Savazza Garcel Roger Marcus Patient ID Roger Marcus Roger Marcus Patient Name I August 26, 2011 at 12:00 AM Aopointment Date > Q W E R T Y U I O P A S D F G H J K L Z X Cancel Roger Marcus Pool 245 PM Cancel Roger Marcus Pool A Cancel Roger Marcus Pool Pool Roger Marcus Pool Pool Pool Pool Pool Pool Roger Marcus Pool Roger Marcus Pool Roger Marcus Pool Roger Marcus Pool Roger Marcus <t< td=""><td>•</td><td>Z</td><td>X</td><td>С</td><td>۷</td><td>В</td><td>Ν</td><td>М</td><td>\mathbf{X}</td></t<>	•	Z	X	С	۷	В	Ν	М	\mathbf{X}
Cancel Roger Marcus INFO To Be Signed Folder 63473226 Transcription ID 21234 Patient ID Roger Marcus Patient Name August 26, 2011 at 12:00 AM Aopointment Date Q W Z X C V B N M<	123	٢	Ŷ		spa	ace		re	turn
To Be Signed Folder 63473226 Transcription ID 21234 Patient ID Roger Marcus Patient Name August 26, 2011 at 12:00 AM Aboointment Date Q W E R T Y U I O P A S D F G H J K L 2 X C V B N M 123 2 2 X C V B N M 2 aproximately one month. The patient also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies fever, chills, and sweats. He denies cough and diarrhea. He has mild anorexia. Past Medical History: Essentially unremarkable except for chest wall cysts which apparently have been biopsied by a dermatologist in the past, and he was given a benign diagnosis. He had a recent PPD which was negative in August 1994. MEDICATIONS: Advil and Ibuprofen. ALLERGIES: NO KNOWN DRUG THENCINS: Advil and Ibuprofen.	•								
Patient ID Patient ID Roger Marcus Patient Name August 26, 2011 at 12:00 AM ADDOINTMENT Date Q W E R T Y U I O P A S D F G H J K L C Z X C V B N M C 123 © Q space Done Pod 2 245 PM Cancel Roger Marcus approximately one month. The patient also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies reports a benign diagnosis. He had a recent PPD which was negative in August 1994. MEDICATIONS: Advil and Ibuprofen. ALLERGIES: NO KNOWN DRUG HE H	To Be Folde 6347 Trans	e Sigi r 3226 criptic							
August 26, 2011 at 12:00 AM Aboointment Date Q W E R T Y U I O P A S D F G H J K L Z X C V B N M 2 123 Q Q space Done Pod 2 245 PM Cancel Roger Marcus Pod 2 245 PM Cancel Roger Marcus Pod 3 245 PM Cancel Roger Marcus Physical Science Action also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies fever, chills, and sweats. He denies cough and diarrhea. He has mild anorexia. Past Medical History: Essentially unremarkable except for chest wall cysts which apparently have been biopsied by a dermatologist in the past, and he was given a benign diagnosis. He had a recent PD which was negative in August 1994. MEDICATIONS: Advil and Ibuprofen. ALLERGIES: NO KNOWN DRUG LUNCO Changes Save Complete Feneral: This is a thin, black cachectic man	Patier	nt ID	rcus						8
Accoointment Date Q W E R T Y U I O P A S D F G H J K L C Z X C V B N M I23 Q Z X C V B N M I23 Q Space Done Pod I245 PM Cancel Roger Marcus approximately one month. The patient also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies fever, chills, and sweats. He denies cough and diarthea. He has mild anorexia. Past Medical History: Essentially unremarkable except for chest wall cysts which apparently have been biopsied by a dermatologist in the past, and he was given a benign diagnosis. He had a recent PPD which was negative in August 1994. MEDICATIONS: Advil and Ibuprofen. ALLERGIES: NO KNOWN DRUG LUNCO Changes Save Complete Femeral: This is a thin, black cachectic man	Patier	nt Nar	ne		12:0	00 A	м		
A S D F G H J K L Z X C V B N M 123 Q space Done Pod 245 PM	Ασσο	intmer	nt Da	te					
123 Image: I	A	S	D	F	G	Н	J	ĸ	L
Pod Total 245 PM	•	Z	X	С	۷	В	Ν	М	\mathbf{X}
Cancel Roger Marcus approximately one month. The patient also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies fever, chills, and sweats. He denies cough and diarrhea. He has mild anorexia. Past Medical History: Essentially unremarkable except for chest wall cysts which apparently have been biopsied by a dermatologist in the past, and he was given a benign diagnosis. He had a recent PPD which was negative in August 1994. MEDICATIONS: Advil and Ibuprofen. ALLERGIES: NO KNOWN DRUG Undo Changes Save Complete Feneral: This is a thin. black cachectus man	123	٢	Q		spa	ace		D	one
approximately one month. The patient also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies fever, chills, and sweats. He denies cough and diarrhea. He has mild anorexia. Past Medical History: Essentially unremarkable except for chest wall cysts which apparently have been biopsied by a dermatologist in the past, and he was given a benign diagnosis. He had a recent PPD which was negative in August 1994. MEDICATIONS: Advil and Ibuprofen. ALLERGIES: NO KNOWN DRUG HEDICATION New Dictation Undo Changes Save Complete Feneral: This is a thin, black cachectic man			-				e		*
ALLERGIES: NO KNOWN DRUG New Dictation Undo Changes Save Complete General: This is a thin, black cachectic man	approximately one month. The patient also reports a 15-pound weight loss. He denies fever, chills, and sweats. He denies cough and diarrhea. He has mild anorexia. Past Medical History: Essentially unremarkable except for chest wall cysts which apparently have been biopsied by a dermatologist in the past, and he was given a benign diagnosis. He had a recent								
New Dictation Undo Changes Save Complete General: This is a thin, black cachectic man									
Undo Changes Save Complete	ALL	ERGI	ne				-	G	
Save Complete	-								
Complete General: This is a thin, black cachectic man	-		0,				00		
				Co		-			
	Tiene		and the second se	-			-		

3.14 The Settings Screen

The Settings Screen is used to set default screens and behavior for the Emdat Mobile application.

- Change Password: Change the password for Emdat Mobile. Remember that InQuiry, InSync, and Emdat Mobile passwords are all the same.
- Recording Screen is used to choose which tab is selected when opening a Patient Appointment; Templates, Info, or History. Info is selected by default.
- Document Type is used to select a default document type for dictations. The previous default document type setting will be set as default. If "None" was selected before, Prompt on Upload will be selected by default. Emdat Mobile will prompt to select a document type when uploading a dictation that does not have one selected. If this is the first time Emdat Mobile has been used, Prompt on Upload will be defaulted in.
- Location is used to select a default location for dictations. The previous location setting will be set as default. If None was selected before, Prompt on Upload is selected by default. Emdat Mobile will prompt to select a location when uploading a dictation that does not have a one selected. If this is the first time Emdat Mobile has been used, Prompt on Upload will be defaulted in.
- Silence Detection selects how long Emdat Mobile will wait on silence before pausing a recording.
- Transcription text size selects how large text is when viewing a transcription.
- Custom Encounter field selects which custom field is displayed to the right of the patient name on the appointment listing.
- Document Types in the Favorites section is used to filter the document types that are available when choosing a document type for a dictation. If a facility has thirty document types, but a dictator only needs five of those document types, this setting is used to remove the other twenty-five from the list of possible document types.
- Locations are used to filter the locations that are available when choosing a location for a dictation. If a facility has fifteen locations, and a dictator only works at three of them, this setting is used to remove the other twelve from the list of possible locations.
- Confirm Uploads and Confirm Logout turns the confirmation pop-up for those actions on or off.

iPod 穼	2:46 PM	* 💼
	Settings	
SUPPO	DRT	
R	Help Desk Support	>
	Change Password	>
DEFAU	ILTS	
	Recording Screen	>
	Document Type Prompt on Upload	>
V	Location Prompt on Upload	>
Ţ	Silence Detection	>
A≞	Transcription Text Size	>
	Custom Encounter Field	>
Patients	Transcriptions Settings Ad	Count

	Settings	
14	Prompt on Upload	~
0	Silence Detection	
(G.	Disabled	>
A₿	Transcription Text Size Small	>
	Custom Encounter Field	>
FAVO	RITES	
	Document Types	>
۹.,	Locations All	>
CON	FIRMATIONS	
Cor	nfirm Uploads	\bigcirc
Cor	nfirm Logout	\bigcirc
Q		1)

3.15 The Account Screen

Logout from the application by tapping the Account button located in the lower right hand corner of the application screen and pressing the logout button in the upper left corner.

Users who want to quickly switch between different logins can link additional accounts by pressing the + button in the upper right corner of the Accounts screen. Then enter the login credentials and select login.

Unwanted accounts can be removed by swiping the account name from right to left and pressing the delete button that appears.



4. Emdat Mobile on the iPad

4.1 Logging into Emdat Mobile on iPad

To get started, launch the Emdat Mobile application from the home screen after the installation has completed.

Once Emdat Mobile has started the login screen will appear. Enter your login credentials, which are the same as what you use for InQuiry, and press the login button at the top right.

- Login Enter your login name here.
- **Password** Enter your password here.
- **Client** The code that identifies the facility you work for.
- **Save Login** The Emdat Mobile app will remember a user's login when this option is switched to "ON". The next time the application is opened, it will remember the login.
- **Save Password** The application will remember a user's password when this option is switched to "ON", but it can only be used if the administrator of your facility's account allows it. If this is set to "ON", other people can gain unauthorized access to your account if they have your iPad.



4.2 Using Emdat Mobile on the iPad

The Schedule screen and buttons for Emdat Mobile on the iPad are different from the iPhone. These are the buttons that appear in the navigation bar on the left side of the screen when Emdat Mobile is used on the iPad:



The Patients screen displays a list of available patient appointments that have been assigned.



The Transcriptions button takes the application to the Transcriptions screen, where submitted dictations can be reviewed, edited, and passed through the workflow.



The Settings button takes the application to the Settings screen, where default behaviors of the application can be set; Silence Detection for example.



This button will access the Account Screen to facilitate switching between multiple Emdat Mobile logins.



4.3 Appointments on the iPad

The navigation bar on the left side of the iPad application provides a list of patient appointments, and allows the application user to choose an appointment, or create a new appointment, dictate, and send the dictation in for transcription. To create a new appointment, tap on the + icon, this will create a new appointment. A patient's medical record number can be entered to identify the patient when creating a new appointment on the iPad.

To dictate on an appointment, tap on the appointment to bring up the dictation screen and then tap on the red record button. From here, the history of this patient can be viewed, document type and location can be selected, and the dictation can be marked STAT.

Appointments that have a recorded dictation will show one of these icons:

- This icon is for appointments that have been dictated and uploaded from a different source, for example, called in by telephone with InTouch.
- This icon is for appointments that have a dictation on them, but have not yet been uploaded. Additional dictation can still be added to these appointments.
- This icon is for appointments that have been dictated on and sent in for transcription. Additional dictation cannot be appended to an appointment once it has been uploaded.

The iPad application stores dictations for two weeks after the appointment date. Dictations can be replayed from the appointments on the schedule screen.

Tap on the folder icon on the lower right of the Schedule screen, just above the Account button, to open the Filters screen. Filters are used to hide appointments that:

- Have been dictated on other devices.
- Dictations that are currently uploading.
- Dictations that have been completed.

Appointments can also be filtered based on Schedule Resources. One or more Resource IDs can be assigned to a provider, and they can be filtered out as necessary.

Tap and hold down your finger while swiping down anywhere in the appointment listing to refresh the workflow folder listing. Note that this works when the view is already scrolled to the top.

Below are screen shots of each of the three screens available when dictating in the iPad application. A screen is selected by tapping on the Templates, Info, or History buttons at the bottom of the screen. The button for the current screen turns blue to show which screen is selected.

••••	U.S. Celli	ular Ҿ			
	•	Se	p 22	•	+
Chie	cago Hop	эе			
12:00	Carl Mo 986532	organ			\checkmark
12:00	Darryl J 55321	lenkins			
12:00	Frank S 65432				Q
	Janie S 5522				@
12:00	Kevin S 1223456	aliga			
12:00	Laura K 1234567	-			
12:00	Laurie F	Kaiser			
12:00	Louise 556614	-			
	Paula L 63523				
	85285285		no		
12:00	Test Tes 557323	st			
-		(1)	1		
2	3		¢):	Ċ

The Templates screen previews document templates and dictation templates so they can be used as a reference while dictating. The document type can be selected by tapping on the blue icon at the right side of the Document Template field.

The Info screen is used to select document type and location for all dictations. When a new appointment is created on the iPad by tapping on the + icon, the Info screen is where the patient MRN or name and the appointment date can be entered.

The History screen shows prior dictations done on the MRN or patient name that is entered for this dictation. Tapping on the items in this list will display the previous reports done on the patient.

+++= ○ U.S. Cellular 辛	1:47 PM	\$ 72% ■ D	●●●○○ U.S. Cellular 🗢	1:47 PM	\$ 72% ⊃	+++⊂ U.S. Cellular 🗢	1:48 PM	\$ 72% ○
Patients	Darryl Jenkins	Ċ.	Patients	Darryl Jenkins	Ċ	Patients	Frank Stein	<u>Ů</u>
DOCUMENT TEMPLATE			DICTATION INFORMATION Document Type			History & Physical Report Demonstration User		Jan 17, 2013
Not Selected		(i) >			*	Letter		Jan 4, 2013
DICTATION TEMPLATES			Location		>	Demonstration User History & Physical Report		Dec 14, 2012
Attestation Template			Receipt Code			Demonstration User		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Diane			TID			Letter Greg Smith, M.D.		Jun 23, 2012
						Echocardiogram Jeff Olver		Jun 15, 2012
Normal Level 4 template			PATIENT DEMOGRAPHICS			Letter		Aug 25, 2008
Spondylolisthesis Risk			Patient Name Darryl Jenkins		Patient ID > 55321 >	Chris Attkins, M.D History & Physical Report		Aug 14, 2008
Steve			Birthdate	Age	Gender	Chris Attkins, M.D		
-			Jan 21, 1982	32	м	Letter Kevin Saliga		Aug 14, 2008
System Review			ENCOUNTER			New Patient		Aug 14, 2008
Test HSHS			Appointment Date September 12, 2014 at 12:	00 AM		Ellis Austria		
			Resource					
			Encounter Description					
			Order Number 9859512656					
			Access No					
			Location					
			Dis Date					
			Hosp ∉					
			Adm Date					
			_					
Append Overwrite Insert			Append Overwrite	nsert		Append Overwrite Insert		
00:00		- 00:00	00:00	00		00:00		- 00:00
m	0	с Р		(T) 🕧 🖸				C ⁹
Templates	Info	History		Templates Info Histor	y.	[] Temp		History

4.4 Recording Dictation on the iPad

Recording a new dictation on the iPad is similar to recording dictations on the iPhone or iPod, but there are some minor differences. The History, Info, and Transcription screens do the same thing as the iPhone application's screens. Dictations can also be marked STAT, recorded, and played back.

To change the recording mode from append to overwrite or insert, there are three buttons at the lower left of the screen. The size of the recording buttons cannot be changed. Tapping on the Patients button on the upper left corner of the screen will not close or pause recording; it will open the list of appointments to the left of the screen, and recording will continue.

By default, when new dictations are created, Emdat Mobile does not select a Document Type or Location for that dictation. When uploading a dictation with no Document Type or Location selected, Emdat Mobile will prompt the user to select one from a list of available Document Types and Locations. However, to stop Emdat Mobile from prompting for a Document Type and Location when uploading, select a default Document Type and Location from the Settings Screen.



4.5 Viewing Pending and Completed Transcriptions on the iPad

The workflow on the iPad will appear as a bar on the left side of the screen when the transcriptions button is tapped.

Tapping on one of the folders in the bar will bring up a list of all the reports that are in that folder. Tap on an item from this list to view and edit it.

When a transcription from the list is tapped on, the transcription viewer will come up. At the bottom of the transcription viewer are three buttons.

Tapping the Info button will bring up a screen showing the demographic data: MRN, Dates, Document Type, Location, etc. This data can be edited after tapping the edit button on the upper right side of the screen.

The Transcription button will show the text of the dictation. This can also be edited by tapping on the edit button on the upper right side of the screen.

The Comments button will show comments and comment tags on the transcription. These are usually comments from the transcriptionist about the dictation. Comments and comment tags cannot be edited in this application.

Tap on the Edit button on the lower right of the navigation bar to complete all documents in a folder, or select a set of documents in a folder for completion. This button is not used to edit the text of a transcription.

Tap and hold down your finger while swiping down anywhere in the transcription listing to refresh the workflow folder listing. Note that this works when the view is already scrolled to the top.



●●□CO U.S. Cellular 辛			9:13 AM		8 Not Charging
Transcriptions To B	e Signed	Q	Paula Little	+	Edit Complete
Welcome to Emdat	1/1/02. Demonstra	12:00 AM	sted.]		
Welcome to Emdat	1/1/02, Demonstra	12:00 AM	nc.		
Roger Marcus	8/26/11, Demonstra		sange		
Peter Robbins	2/16/12, Demonstra		drug allergies.		
Alex Peterson 0765432	2/16/12, Demonstra		me.		
Jane Doe 489515	2/16/12. Demonstra	2:00 AM	r diabetes, rheumatoid arthriti	s, and heart disease	2.
Shelia Jackson	2/16/12, 1	2:00 AM	tobacco, or drug use. /Chills: No. Weight Gain/Lo		
Mako Hunter	9/17/12, Demonstra		ess of Breath: No. Chest Pair m. No. Hepatitis No. Oper : No. Thyroid Disorder: No ands, heart rate []. yale[female] in no apparent di ation grossly intact. ion.	n Wounds: No. R. . Blood Clots: No	ash on Affected
Dictated Patien	0	Edit	Tanuaration Commen		

4.6 The Search Function on the iPad

Tap the search button \bigcirc on the upper right of the navigation bar to search for transcriptions. This will bring up a search window. If done from Transcriptions, it will search all transcriptions. If done from a folder, like the Preliminary Folder, it will search in that folder. The title at the top of the search window will say "Search All" if searching from the Transcriptions screen and "Search" if done from a specific folder.

Search criteria can be entered into one or more of the fields shown. The labels for these fields can be different from those shown to the right, and should match terms used at your facility.

Tap on the \bigcirc icon at the upper right of the search window to execute the search. The search results will then be displayed in a navigation bar to the left of the iPad screen.

●●●●○ U.S. Cellular 😤		~	1:51 PM			\$ 71% E D
Transc	riptions	۹	Roger Marcus			iit Complete
Min To Be Typed	ew (26) > 4	42-year-old black man with omplaint of weakness, mala s a 15-pound weight loss. H Past Medical History: Esset y a dermatologist in the past ast 1994.	ise and dyspnea or e denies fever, chi ntially unremarkab	1 exer IIs, ar Ne ex	tion for ad sweats. He cept for chest
Ca	ncel		Search All		Q,	
	IENT					he patient is
To Be CPatier	nt ID					
Patier	nt Name					
ENG	OUNTER					grees
Autho	r				>	
Арро	intment Date (start)				>	
Appo	intment Date (end)				>	
Order	Number					has very pale
DIC	TATION					
Docu	ment Type				>	7100, platelet total bilirubin
Locat	ion				>	terstitial
Date	Dictated (start)	a	iia, rule out Pneumocystis c	arinii pneumonia a	> nd tu	
Patients Transciptions	Settings Acc	Dunt	Transcription Comm	ents		

The icons next to the Search Results will indicate which workflow folder that dictation is in. The icons are:

- Dictation This is a dictation that is still being transcribed by a transcriptionist.
 - Review This is a transcription that is in the Review folder of the workflow.
 - Preliminary This is a transcription that is in the Preliminary folder of the workflow, and can be electronically signed.
 - Final This transcription is in one of the Final/Print folders at the end of the workflow.
 - Referral This transcription is in the Referral folder; a folder for Emdat clients at other facilities to view dictations as associates.
 - Archive This transcription has been moved through the entire workflow, and is now archived.

4.7 Editing Transcribed Dictations

Once a dictation has been transcribed, it can be viewed, edited, and moved through the workflow from the Transcriptions part of the navigation bar. To open an item, tap on the dictation and the transcription viewer will open.

From this viewer, the transcription can be completed to the next step in the work flow, the text of the transcription can be edited, and comments and demographic information can be viewed. Comments cannot be edited.

When in edit mode, the bar at the top of the screen will turn red.



4.8 The Settings Screen

The settings screen is where the default settings for the Emdat Mobile Application can be changed. When new documents are created, the application can be set to start them with a default document type and location. Silence Detection when dictating is set under options, as is which screen loads when dictating.

The Recording Screen setting determines which screen (Templates, Info, or History) appears first when opening an appointment to dictate. The default is Info.

The Document Type and Location settings will set one document type or location as default for all new dictations. If the previous default setting was "None" or this is the first time using Emdat Mobile, the default setting is to prompt the user to choose a document type or location every time a dictation without one chosen is completed and uploaded.

Silence Detection will stop recording a dictation after a certain period of silence from the dictator. The default setting for is for silence detection is "disabled".

Transcription Text Size adjusts the size of text when viewing and editing transcribed dictations.

Custom Encounter field selects which custom field is displayed to the right of the patient name on the appointment listing.

The Favorites setting for Document Types and Locations will allow a user to limit the list of items to choose from. If, for example, a user's facility has fifty locations, but the user only goes to three of them, the Favorites – Locations setting can be used to show only those three locations when choosing an appointment's location.



Confirm Uploads and Confirm Logout will turn on or off a confirmation prompt when uploading dictations, or logging out of the application.

4.9 Account Screen for iPad

Logout from the application by tapping the Account button located in the lower right hand corner of the application screen and pressing the logout button in the upper left corner, or by pressing the Home button at any time.

Users who want to quickly switch between different logins can add linked accounts by pressing the \pm button in the upper right corner of the Accounts screen. Then enter the login credentials and select login.

Unwanted accounts can be removed by swiping the account name from right to left and pressing the delete button that appears.

●●●○○ U.S. Cellular	?	
Account	Add Site	Login
CREDENTIALS		
Login		
Login		
Password		
Client		
	Login	

5. Troubleshooting and FAQ

Q: My dictations get interrupted when I receive a phone call on my iPhone, how do I stop this from happening?

A: By design, Apple does not allow our application to block incoming phone calls while you are dictating. You will not lose any work if a phone call comes in while dictating. When the Accept/Message/Reject screen pops up, recording will pause. You will be returned to the record screen upon ending or rejecting the phone call. You can then resume dictating by pressing the Record button. If you have concerns about incoming phone calls while dictating, you can switch you phone to "Airplane Mode" or "Do Not Disturb." This can be done by going back to the home screen, tapping on the Settings icon, and switching modes; it is the first option in the list when you go into phone settings.

Q: My appointments are gone, or are not appearing as they should.

A: There are two common causes of this problem. The most frequent is that the filter view has been changed. Please see page 5 for filtering information. There could also be an issue with the way appointments have been uploaded to our system from your facility's scheduling software or EHR. Please call our Help Desk at 608-270-6400 x 1 to help resolve this issue.

Q: My application has not been updated. How do I update Emdat Mobile?

A: Apple devices do not support automatic updates. To update apps on an Apple device go to the Apple Store. If there are updates available it will open to the Updates tab, and updates can be manually applied there.

Q: How is my data protected in the app?

A: All data that is stored on the device is protected by Apple's AES 256-bit crypto engine. Additionally, all of the data that is transferred over the Internet is encrypted by a TLS connection, the same protection that banks use to give you safe and secure access to your accounts. Both of these mechanisms ensure that data-at-rest and data-in-motion are always secure when you use Emdat Mobile.

The encryption keys are derived from the passcode that you set to lock your device, therefore using an alpha-numeric password is much more secure than a four digit PIN.

6. Inpatient

This optional feature is active only if requested by the Client, and is not available for all users.

The inpatient workflow is an alternative scheduling method where, instead of listing patients based upon appointment, patients are listed based upon inpatient encounters.

For example a physician is working on the Critical Care ward of his hospital and is required to make regular rounds to all of the patients that are admitted to Critical Care. The inpatient workflow allows the physician to easily track which patients are on his ward and if he has dictated on them today, or he still needs to visit them. Inpatient also allows the physician to clear his schedule manually when he needs to see patients more frequently.

To switch between the standard appointment screen and the inpatient feature use the toggle at the bottom of the patient tab.



- Highlight the clock for appointment mode.
- Highlight the bed for Inpatient mode.
- Inpatient encounters can be sorted by Author Groups and by Location. To change views between Author Groups and Location select the Filter button.
 - My Patients will display all patient encounters linked to the default schedule resource of the logged-in user. This is the default view in inpatient mode.
 - Author Groups are used to group patients based on the schedule resource. Users can be enrolled in multiple Author Groups. Select an Author group to view all patients for all users enrolled in this group. You do not have be enrolled a group to view the patients. To view an Author Group tap on the group name. Enrolling in a group will allow other users to view your patients. To enroll in a group tap the toggle button and it will appear green; to disenroll tap the toggle button again and it will appear white.
 - Use Locations to show all inpatient encounters based on the location resource regardless of the associated schedule resource.
 - The Sort filter will order the patient encounters by Treatment Status (marked as Treated or not), Patient Full Name, Patient First Name, Patient Last Name, or Admit Date.

K My Patients	
AUTHOR GROUPS	
My Patients	~
Cardiology You are enrolled in this group.	
Demo	\bigcirc >
Psych You are enrolled in this group.	
LOCATIONS	
East	>
LocationDemo	>
West	>
SORT	
Treatment Status	~
Patient Full Name	
Patient Last Name	
Patients Transcriptions Settin	gs Account

Patients who have received treatment are marked with this icon **T**. This indicates that a dictation has been started for this patient or the patient has been marked as Treated. The checkmark still indicates a completed dictation, the microphone indicates a dictation on hold.

Patients can be marked as Treated without dictating by selecting the Set Treatment Status option within the options menu in the patient encounter details. Patients can also be removed from a work list by choosing Remove from my work list.

Patients can be added to a work list by pressing the Add button and searching for a patient with an existing inpatient encounter record.



	Cardiology		+
Chicago Hope			
Patient1 One			
Patient 1 - Jones			
Patient10 Ten			
Patient 10 - Smith			
Patient5 Five			
Patient 5 - Smith			
Patient8 Eight			
Patient 8 - Jones			
Patient9 Nine			
Patient 9			
Patient2 Two			/
Patient 2 - Smith		T	\checkmark
Patient4 Four			
Patient 4		T	Q

Note: The Cloud Icon is not used with inpatient encounters.

- To remove the Treatment Status icon from all patients press this button.
- Treatment Status can be removed from a single patient by selecting the appointment, selecting the options button in the top right and Clear Treatment Status



7. Removing Emdat Mobile

To uninstall Emdat Mobile, simple exit the application and press and hold the Emdat Mobile icon. The icon should display an "X" on the top left corner. Click the "X" icon to be prompted to uninstall the application.



8. Support

We offer the following support options in the event that you need further assistance with our applications:

- Help Desk Request: http://www.emdat.com/ticket
- Phone Support (608) 270-6400 ext. 1 (Help Desk support is provided weekdays 7AM 7PM CST)